
           

Finance Committee Agenda Tuesday, February 28, 2023
8:30 a.m.

Executive Conference Room
 

MEMBERS:
ALTERNATE:  

Mayor Marty Simonoff and Council Member Steven Vargas
Council Member Cecilia Hupp

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item the Committee will consider. The
Administrative Services Department has on file copies of written documentation relating to each item of
business on this Agenda available for public inspection. Contact the Administrative Services Department
Office at (714) 990-7676 or view the Agenda and related materials on the City’s website at
https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-Minutes.   Materials related to an item on this agenda
submitted to the Committee after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the
Administrative Services Department's Office at 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA during normal business
hours. Such documents may also be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post
documents before the meeting.

Procedures for Addressing the Committee
Members of the public may offer comment in advance or attend the Finance Committee meeting in
person. All requests to offer comment must be submitted via phone by calling 714-990-7676 or by
emailing arlenem@cityofbrea.net by 12:00 p.m. on Monday, February 27, 2023
PLEASE SILENCE ALL PAGERS, CELL PHONES AND OTHER ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT WHILE THE COMMITTEE IS IN
SESSION.
           

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL
 

1. Matters from the Audience
 

CONSENT
 

2. February 14, 2023 Finance Committee Regular Meeting Minutes - Approve.
 

Attachments
Minutes 02-14-2023

 

DISCUSSION
 

3. Approval of the Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy - Adopt the Resolution
approving the Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy.

 

4. Acceptance of the Brea Water Main Replacement Steele Drive Tract and Pleasant Hills

https://www.ci.brea.ca.us/509/Meeting-Agendas-Minutes


4. Acceptance of the Brea Water Main Replacement Steele Drive Tract and Pleasant Hills
Tract, Project Nos. 7453 and 7457 -  Accept the Project as complete and authorize the City
Clerk to record a Notice of Completion; Accept the Warranty Bond; and
Authorize the City Clerk to release the Payment and Performance Bond upon notification
from the Public Works Department. 

 

Attachments
Attachment A - Location Map
Attachment B - Warranty Bond
Attachment C - Notice of Completion

 

5. Authorize the Purchase of Playground Equipment for Arovista Park Modernization
Project, CIP 7978 - Approve the purchase of playground equipment from seven different
manufacturers for a total of $1,987,367.00; and Authorize the City Manager to issue a purchase
order change notice in a not-to-exceed amount of five percent of the equipment purchase price.

 

6. Extension of Professional Services Agreement with Interwest Consulting Group, Inc.
- Approve one-year extension of Professional Services Agreement with lnterwest Consulting
Group, Inc. in the amount not-to-exceed $150,000 per year.

 

Attachments
Amendment No. 3
Exhibit A

 

7. Professional Services Agreement with Westberg White Architecture for Brea Senior
Center Feasibility Study - Approve the Professional Services Agreement in an amount
not-to-exceed $75,000.

 

Attachments
Professional Services Agreement
Westberg White Architecture Fee Proposal

 

8. Traffic Improvements at the Intersection of Puente Street and Northwood Avenue 
- Approve Conceptual Signing and Striping Improvement Plan for the intersection of Puente
Street and Northwood Avenue; and Direct the City Engineer to implement said improvements. 

 

Attachments
Conceptual Signing & Striping Improvement Plan

 

9. Purchase of New Fire Apparatus - Appropriate $219,408.15 from the General Fund and
authorize the purchase of one (1) ladder/tiller truck for $1,950,408.63.

 

Attachments
Quote

 

10. Purchasing System Update – Receive Update and Consider Revisions to the City’s
Purchasing Policy Limits - Receive the update and recommend the City Council consider
adoption of Resolution No. 2023-0XX designating Purchasing Policy Limits and the Local Vendor
Preference Amount for the City’s Purchasing System.

 



 

Attachments
Current Purchasing Ordinance No. 1198
Comparison of Purchasing Policy Limits for the Procurement of Goods and Services
Resolution

 

11. Schedule Next Meeting:  Tuesday, March 14, 2023
 

 
 

Special Accommodations
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the Administrative Services administrative office at (714) 990-7676. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
City staff to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. (28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title II)



2.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: February 14, 2023 Finance Committee Regular Meeting Minutes

RECOMMENDATION
Approve.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Alicia Brenner, Senior Fiscal Analyst
Concurrence:  Kristin Griffith, Director of Administrative Services

Attachments
Minutes 02-14-2023 



Draft Finance Committee Minutes    Tuesday, February 14, 2023 
 

 

DRAFT FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Tuesday, February 14, 2023 

8:30 AM 
 

Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California 
 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
 
ATTENDEES: Mayor Marty Simonoff, Council Member Steven Vargas, Chris Emeterio , Kristin Griffith, 
Michael Ho, Bill Bowlus, Ryan Chapman, Dave Dickinson, Monica Lo, Faith Madrazo, Sean Matlock, 
Mark Terrill, Nicole Andrews, Alicia Brenner and Lisa Keyworth. 
 

 
1. Matters from the Audience - None 

 
CONSENT 

 
2. January 31, 2023 Finance Committee Regular Meeting Minutes – Approved.   

 
DISCUSSION 

 

3. Professional Services Agreement for Forensic Phlebotomy Services – Recommended for 
City Council approval. 

 

4. Budget Adjustments to the City Operating and Capital Improvement Program Budgets 
for Fiscal Year 2022-23  – Recommended for City Council approval. 

 

5. Schedule Next Meeting:  Tuesday, February 28, 2023 

 

 Meeting adjourned: 8:32 AM 

 



3.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: Approval of the Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt the Resolution approving the Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Periodically, the City Council updates the Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy to
reflect changes in salaries and benefits affecting our part-time employees.  At times, updates
are implemented based on changes required by law, such as minimum wage.  The last
market survey for our part-time classifications was conducted in 2006.  The market study for
this year was needed based on the minimum wage increases over the past several years to
see where we fell within the market and the compaction it caused.

A recent part-time classification salary survey was conducted by Sloan Sokai in January
2023, which reviewed nine comparable cities that are used for all positions in the
organization.  There were several part-time positions that fell below median and the new
proposed increase will bring them to median and address the compaction between several
classifications within the same job family.
  

Position Current Top
Step

Proposed Top
Step

Community Services Leader $18.88 $19.82
Senior Community Services
Leader $19.83 $21.81

Community Services
Coordinator $20.83 $24.58

Lifeguard/Instructor $18.88 $20.30
Senior Lifeguard/Instructor $19.83 $22.46
Shuttle Driver $22.77 $27.60
Facilities Worker $19.83 $21.81
Police Cadet $17.98 $20.34



Positions not included in the above list are: Administrative Intern, Community Services
Worker, Mail Room Stores Clerk and Technical Intern, which are all tied to minimum wage,
and therefore, would remain at $15.50 per hour effective January 1, 2023.
Also included are updates to the Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy that include
language clean up.  There are no substantial changes associated with these updates.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy market survey increases include a total of 70
employees in part-time classifications.  The estimated fiscal impact of these increases is
$128,024 which will be included in the budget for FY 2023-25.

Summary
This action approves amending the City’s Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Sean L. Matlock, Deputy Director of Community Services
Concurrence: Chris Emeterio, Assistant City Manager and
Kristin Griffith, Director of Administrative Services 



4.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: Acceptance of the Brea Water Main Replacement Steele Drive Tract and
Pleasant Hills Tract, Project Nos. 7453 and 7457

RECOMMENDATION
Accept the Project as complete and authorize the City Clerk to record a Notice of
Completion; 

1.

Accept the Warranty Bond; and2.
Authorize the City Clerk to release the Payment and Performance Bond upon
notification from the Public Works Department.

3.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
On December 15, 2020, the City Council awarded a Construction Contract ("Contract") to All
Cities Engineering, Inc. ("ACE") for $3,916,292.65 for the Brea Water Main Replacement
Steele Drive Tract and Pleasant Hills Tract, Project Nos. 7453 and 7457 ("Project"), and
approved a 10% construction contingency for a total approved construction budget of
$4,307,921.92. The Project replaced and upgraded the existing water mains and
appurtenances, replaced four pressure regulating systems, and completed street resurfacing
throughout the two subdivisions. In addition, the Project also included reconstructing the
ADA ramps to the latest standards and reconstruction of sidewalks, and curb and gutters
(Attachment A Location Map). 
 
The Notice-to-Proceed with the construction was issued on April 19, 2021, and the Project
was considered substantially complete on February 11, 2022, with final acceptance of the
work on November 8, 2022. There were several contract change orders, including the final
quantity balancing change order approved for the Project that resulted in a reduction of
($203,096.39) from the contract amount. Therefore, the final total accepted contract cost was
$3,713,196.26. The improvements have been completed, and staff recommends the City
Council approve the acceptance of work performed by ACE.

The following is a summary of contract costs:
  
Original Construction Contract Amount $3,916,292.65
Approved Change Orders (-$203,096.39)
ACE Final Construction Contract Amount $3,713,196.26
Approved Construction Budget with 10% Contingency $4,307,921.92



Remaining Construction Budget $594,725.66

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The final Contract amount for the Project is $3,713,196.26, which is under the approved
construction Contract budget. The source of funds for this Project is from the Water Utility
Fund (Fund 420), Gas Tax (Fund 220), and Measure M (Fund 260). Therefore, there is no
impact to the General Fund. Once the Project is finally closed out, any remaining unspent
funds will be reallocated to the appropriate funds for other approved CIP Projects. 
 
The Project replaced and upgraded the existing water mains and appurtenances, replaced
four pressure regulating systems, completed street resurfacing, and reconstructed ADA
ramps, sidewalks, and curb and gutter within the Steele Drive and Pleasant Hills
subdivisions. ACE has completed the Project and fulfilled its obligations to the City under the
subject Contract. Furthermore, ACE provided a Warranty Bond of 100% of the final Contract
amount to guarantee the work for one year after the recordation of the Notice of Completion.
Therefore, staff is recommending the City Council consider accepting the Project as
complete, accept the Warranty Bond (Attachment B), and authorize the City Clerk to record a
Notice of Completion (Attachment C). Additionally, staff recommends authorizing the City
Clerk to release the Payment and Performance Bonds upon notification from the Public
Works Department.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Ryan Chapman, Assistant City Engineer
Concurrence: Michael Ho, Public Works Director/City Engineer

Attachments
Attachment A - Location Map 
Attachment B - Warranty Bond 
Attachment C - Notice of Completion 



114

0123456789

SteveKooyman
Snapshot

SteveKooyman
Snapshot



118

0123456789















5.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: Authorize the Purchase of Playground Equipment for Arovista Park
Modernization Project, CIP 7978

RECOMMENDATION
1.  Approve the purchase of playground equipment from seven different manufacturers for a
total of $1,987,367.00; and
2.  Authorize the City Manager to issue a purchase order change notice in a not-to-exceed
amount of five percent of the equipment purchase price.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
In the fall of 2020, the City's Parks, Recreation and Human Services Commission adopted
their Goal Setting Executive Summary highlighting several improvements needed at Arovista
Park. The City Council directed staff to explore the modernization of Arovista Park at their
May 4, 2021, meeting, emphasizing an all-accessible playground and other park
improvements. These included upgrades to existing fields and courts, the addition of
multi-generational recreational opportunities, and the desire for an all-accessible play area.
 
Extensive community outreach and engagement followed through the remainder of 2021,
resulting in an initial concept plan for the park. At their Special Meeting on March 8, 2022,
the City's Parks, Recreation, and Human Services Commission established a base project
with other priorities for the Arovista Park Modernization Project. The base project included
the following:  

An all-inclusive playground
Skate park sound wall
Parking lots
Restrooms
Golf safety netting
Tracks trailhead lighting and design

Other priorities included baseball fields; a theater; Jubilee Grove; an active adult area; and
pickleball, basketball, and volleyball courts. There was a consensus to include relocating the
sound wall in the base project, and staff also recommended safety netting at the golf course,
which is currently underway. 

In June 2022, City Council awarded a design services agreement to David Volz Design for
plans, specifications, and estimates (PS&E) for Arovista Park Modernization, CIP 7978.



City Council, on February 7, 2023, authorized the purchase of a prefabricated
restroom/concession building, restroom/storage, and two trash enclosures. The concept plan
for the all-accessible playground was also shared and approved by the City Council at the
February 7 meeting. Based on the extensive outreach and input received, staff and the
architect have selected play equipment from seven manufacturers that offer various sensory
opportunities throughout the accessible playground. Due to lead times for the equipment,
staff is recommending orders be placed now with the different manufacturers, as detailed in
the table below:
  

Manufacturer Cost
Landscape Structures - Freestanding Play Equipment $253,760.00
Landscape Structures - Custom Tower, Bridge/Elevated Walk $840,000.00
Goric $105,480.00
Berliner $162,271.00
I.D. Sculpture $57,175.00
Gametime $15,000.00
Jen Lewin $105,000.00
Barbara Butler $132,000.00

Sub Total: $1,670,686.00
Tax: $167,138.00

Freight: $149,543.00
Total: $1,987,367.00

Once the purchase orders are issued, the general contractor will be required to coordinate
the delivery of the equipment. The specifications will need a certified playground installer and
certified playground inspector to handle and observe the equipment installation. 

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
Staff recommends purchasing playground equipment from multiple manufacturers, as
detailed above, for the Arovista Park Modernization at $1,987,367.00. Funding is available in
the CIP budget.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Jenn Colacion, Community Services Senior Management Analyst
Prepared by: Bill Bowlus, Public Works Superintendent
Concurrence: Michael Ho, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer



6.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: Extension of Professional Services Agreement with Interwest Consulting Group,
Inc.

RECOMMENDATION
Approve one-year extension of Professional Services Agreement with lnterwest Consulting
Group, Inc. in the amount not-to-exceed $150,000 per year.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
On February 5, 2019, the City Council awarded a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) to
lnterwest Consulting Group for project management services to oversee Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) projects. The agreement was for two (2) years with the option to extend for an
additional three (3) one-year extensions with City Council approval. The total fee for all
assignments authorized during a single year would be limited to a not-to-exceed price of
$150,000.

City staff solicited lnterwest Consulting Group, Inc. (lnterwest), which employs Steve
Kooyman. Steve Kooyman's applicable skills include advanced knowledge and skills in
budgeting, design engineering, construction management, contract/change order
negotiations, and oral and written communication. Additionally, he offers familiarity with the
City's processes, standards, codes, and expectations as a former City Engineer. Since the
contract start date, Mr. Kooyman has been an exceptional project manager. Aside from
Steve Kooyman, lnterwest has other highly qualified staff working with many public agencies.

Steve Kooyman has been a tremendous resource while managing the SR-57/Lambert
Interchange Project and many other (CIP) projects currently underway. Some of the projects
he manages include the rehabilitation of arterial highways, residential streets, and alleyways,
the replacement of undersized and deteriorated sewer and water lines, installing traffic
signals and other traffic safety enhancements, and rehabilitating of City-owned facilities.
Steve Kooyman's services continue to be required to facilitate the pace and quantity of
existing CIP projects in various stages of completion.
 
lnterwest's current hourly rates are within industry standards and meet the City's needs. Staff
desires to extend the Professional Services Agreement with lnterwest Consulting Group. The
total fee for all assignments authorized during a single year would be limited to a
not-to-exceed price of $150,000. 

Interwest's hourly rate for services provided by Mr. Kooyman during the previous extension



period was $167 per hour. Per the agreement, Interwest requests a Consumer Price Index
(CPI) increase of 7.8%. Applying the CPI increase yields a new rate of $180 per hour. City
staff is amenable to this rate increase per the PSA provisions. See Exhibit A - Revised Fee
Rates for reference. This contract agreement is on an as-needed basis; the City may elect to
terminate the contract at any time.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
There will be no impact to the General Fund. Consultant fees are paid from corresponding
CIP project accounts and/or Cost Center accounts.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:   Ryan S. Chapman, P.E., Assistant City Engineer
Concurrence:  Michael Ho, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

Attachments
Amendment No. 3 
Exhibit A 



2437176_2  

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

This Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement dated February 5, 2019 is made and entered into this 

___ day of February, 2023, by and between Interwest Consulting Group (“Contractor") and the City of Brea 

("City"). 

 

A. Recitals. 

 (i) On or about February 5, 2019, City and Contractor entered into an agreement for professional 

services whereby Contractor provides Project Management and Oversight of the City’s Capital 

Improvement Program services to the City (“Agreement”.)  By its original terms, or by amendment(s), the 

Agreement will expire on February 6, 2023 and currently provides for compensation in the annual not-to-

exceed amount of $150,000. 

(ii)  The Agreement permits the City to extend the term, and authorizes such option to be executed 

at the discretion of City Council. 

(iii) The parties desire to memorialize the City’s exercise of its option to extend the term of the 

Agreement and provide for compensation payable to Contractor for this extension period. 

 

B. Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed by and between City and Contractor as follows:  

 1. Notwithstanding any provision of the Agreement: (i) the term of the Agreement is hereby 

extended and shall expire at the end of the business day on February 7, 2024; and, (ii) compensation payable 

to Contractor for the extended term shall be the not-to-exceed amount of One Hundred and Fifty Thousand 

Dollars ($150,000), calculated as a flat amount, or as an hourly rate pursuant to the fee rates in Exhibit A, as 

applicable.   

 2. Except as amended by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement 

remain unaffected and in full force and effect. 

 3. The persons executing this Amendment warrant that they are authorized to execute this 

Amendment and that this Amendment is binding on the parties hereto. 

   

 WHEREAS, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the date first set forth above. 

 

City of Brea, a municipal corporation Contractor:     Interwest Consulting Group          

 

______________________________________ ________________________________________ 

Mayor Signature 

 

 ________________________________________ 

______________________________________ Print or Type Name, Title 

Attest 

Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk ________________________________________ 

 Signature 

 

 ________________________________________ 

 Print or Type Name, Title 

                    (two signatures required if corporation) 

Paul Meschino, President

DavidKniff
Image

DavidKniff
Text Box
David J. Kniff,  Assistant Secretary



 

EXHIBIT A – FEE RATES (AMENDMENT #3) 

 

HOURLY RATES 

The rates displayed in the fee schedule below reflect Interwest’s current fees based on the CPI average 

annual increases in 2022 of 7.8% pursuant to Section B 1(c) of the Agreement, which include shipping, 

supply, and material costs. These hourly rates are subject to the CPI increase as stipulated in the 

Agreement, which may be revised accordingly in subsequent Amendments. In addition, there is no 

charge for shipping, supply, or material costs. 

CLASSIFICATION HOURLY BILLING RATE 

Engineering 

Principal-in-Charge ................................................................................................................................ $210 

Project Manager ....................................................................................................................................... 180 

Traffic Engineer ........................................................................................................................................ 190 

Supervising Engineer ............................................................................................................................... 180 

Senior Engineer ........................................................................................................................................ 170 

Engineering Associate III .......................................................................................................................... 150 

Engineering Associate II ........................................................................................................................... 140 

Engineering Associate I ............................................................................................................................ 130 

Engineering Technician III ....................................................................................................................... 110 

Engineering Technician II......................................................................................................................... 100 

Engineering Technician I ............................................................................................................................ 90 

Student Trainee .......................................................................................................................................... 40 

Grading Plans Examiner ........................................................................................................................... 140 

Construction Management 

Construction Manager  ............................................................................................................................. 170 

Assistant Construction Manager  ............................................................................................................. 160 

Supervising Public Works Inspector ........................................................................................................ 160 

Senior Public Works Inspector ................................................................................................................. 150 

Public Works Inspector III ........................................................................................................................ 150 

Public Works Inspector II ......................................................................................................................... 140 

Public Works Inspector I .......................................................................................................................... 130 

 

Overtime, Night, Weekend, and Holiday Work ....................................... 140% of above listed hourly rates 

 

 

 

 



7.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with Westberg White Architecture for Brea
Senior Center Feasibility Study 

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Professional Services Agreement in an amount not-to-exceed $75,000.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The City of Brea applies annually to the County of Orange for Federal Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding in order to allocate Public Facilities &
Improvements (PF&I) dollars to certain eligible City facilities. For the Fiscal Year 2022-23
funding cycle, the City Council approved a CDBG application for $75,000 requesting funding
for a Senior Center Feasibility Study.  This will assess the facility's needed improvements or
upgrades for the next several years, as well as explore opportunities to expand current
programs and services within the existing campus footprint. With the anticipated growth in
Brea's senior population, as well as the changing needs and desires of this demographic
over time, staff's intent is to explore strategic opportunities to prepare for the future. 

In November 2022, staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for professional consulting
services to lead the Feasibility Study. In December 2022, staff received three proposals
outlined below:
  
Consulting Firm Amount
Gibbous Consulting (Boston, MA) $75,000
IDS Group (Irvine, CA) $70,602
Westberg White Architecture (Tustin, CA) $72,000

The evaluation criteria outlined in the RFP included: 

Qualifications of the Firm
Proposed Team and Organization
Detailed Work Plan
Fee Proposal

After holding interviews with the two lowest bidders, it was determined that the experience
and proposed work plan demonstrated by Westberg White Architecture would best suit the
needs of this project. Staff is recommending a Professional Services Agreement with
Westberg White Architecture in the amount of $72,000, with a contingency of $3,000 for a



total, not-to-exceed amount of $75,000.  Staff anticipates the study kicking off in mid-March
with final conclusions presented back to the City Council in early fall of 2023.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
The CDBG funding received for this year is $75,000. The proposed lump-sum fee proposed
by Westberg White Architecture falls under this amount, and staff is also requesting the
additional $3,000 be used as potential contingency should any additional expenses arise.
There is no General Fund impact, and there is no match requirement for the grant.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Jenn Colacion, Senior Management Analyst
Concurrence: Chris Emeterio, Assistant City Manager and
Carrie Hernandez, Deputy Director of Community Services

Attachments
Professional Services Agreement 
Westberg White Architecture Fee Proposal 



































1

February 15th, 2023

Jenn Colacion
Senior Management Analyst
Human Services Division
Community Services Department
City of Brea
1 Civic & Cultural Center,
Brea, CA 92821

RE: Proposal for Architecture and Professional Consultant services for the City of Brea, Brea 
Senior Center Feasibility Study Services.

Dear Ms. Colacion,

Westberg White Architecture is pleased to submit our proposal for the feasibility study, specific 
needs analysis, site and building improvement recommendations, and programming services for 
the existing Brea Senior Center, in order to provide an accessible, functional, and safe 
environment for low-income seniors and the community of Brea it serves.

Scope of Services:

Architecture:
Architectural Services and Deliverables to include:

-Provide a Site Visit. 
-Meet with the Client to develop a project program.
-Determine feasibility study project schedule and milestone dates.
-Schedule a Project Team Kick-off Meeting.
-Identify potential risks to project budget and schedule.

Specific Needs Analysis and Report Summary:

a. Identify a comprehensive list of needs, upgrades and repairs for the Brea Senior Center 
focusing on accessibility improvements and upgrades, increased programming space, and 
customer services enhancements.

b. Assess the physical spacing needs of the Brea Senior Center and compile both existing and 
proposed new activities into a comprehensive program that will serve the low-income senior 
community presently, and into the future as the senior population continues to increase.



2

Architecture (continued):

c. Examine available or under-utilized space on the existing campus that may be incorporated 
for senior use.

d. Investigate options for interior modification or exterior additions to the existing spaces.

Engineering:

a. Study the traffic impacts to the adjacent neighborhood.

Financial Analysis:

a. Analyze financial impacts of different facility improvement options.

Recommendations:

a. Provide staff with a recommendation on how to proceed with facility improvements.

b. Prepare a phasing & implementation timeline for recommended facility improvement.

Meetings and Presentations:

a. Attend 20 hours associated with meetings and coordination with City staff, as well as 
-one (1) presentation to the Senior Leadership Council
-up to two (2) presentations to the Park, Recreation and Human Services Commission,
-one (1) presentation to City Council.

Ms. Colacion, if you are in agreement with the information provided, we will look forward to 
receiving an agreement from the City of Brea for us to sign. Please call or email if you have any 
questions or need further information. 
 

Sincerely,
Westberg White Architecture

Bradley Mansfield
Principal/ Project Manager   

Cc: Paul Westberg, Westberg+White
Gregory G. Beard, Westberg+White

bmansfield
Image



3

ATTACHMENT 1

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Between the Client:

Human Services Division
Community Services Department
City of Brea

and the Architect:

Westberg + White Inc.
7700 Irvine Center Drive
Suite 100
Tustin, CA  92780 Paul Westberg, Managing Partner, CA License # C11045

Location: Brea Senior Center
500 Sievers Avenue
Brea, CA 92821

Scope of Work: Proposal for Architecture services for the City of Brea, Brea Senior Center 
Feasibility Study Services project as described in our proposal letter 
dated February 15th, 2023.

Compensation Breakdown:

Architecture Deliverables as defined in the Scope of Work above:   

Total: $72,000 

Contingency: (to be used only as directed and approved by the City of Brea)
  

Total: $3,000 



4

Reimbursable Expenses: Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to the fee and include those 
expenses incurred in the interest of the project.  They include project-related travel (mileage and 
auto expenses); printing, plotting and reprographic costs, postage and delivery charges. These 
expenses will be compensated at 1.10 times the amounts invoiced to the Architect. We suggest 
the District budget an estimated $1000.00 for these project-related expenses. 

Client: Architect: 

Human Services Division Westberg + White Inc.
Community Services Department
City of Brea

By:                                                          By:                                      
     Jenn Colacion       Gregory G. Beard
     Senior Management Analyst       Principal, Director of Operations

                    

     Date:                                                                             Date: February 15th, 2023

bmansfield
Image



8.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: Traffic Improvements at the Intersection of Puente Street and Northwood Avenue

RECOMMENDATION
1.  Approve Conceptual Signing and Striping Improvement Plan for the intersection of Puente
Street and Northwood Avenue; and
2.  Direct the City Engineer to implement said improvements. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Puente Street and Northwood Avenue intersection is an all-way stopped intersection of two
two-lane residential streets in the northwestern part of the City.  Puente Street widens to the
south of Central Avenue and becomes an arterial street in Brea, serving both residential and
commercial properties.  Northwood Avenue is a local street on both the east and west of
Puente Street but widens to the east of Puente Street, providing median turning lanes. 
Northwood Avenue serves as a connection that travels from the subject intersection to the
east to N. Berry Street.

In late 2021, a resident reached out to the City to draw attention to concerns regarding both
speeding issues on Puente Street and pedestrian safety concerns at the intersection of
Puente Street and Northwood Avenue.  Along with this request, the resident submitted a
formal request for speed humps on Puente Street, from Northwood Avenue to Whittier
Avenue.  After attaining the data necessary to review the proposals, both recommendations
were presented at the May 19, 2022, Traffic Committee meeting.  At this meeting, the City
Traffic Engineer identified that the request for speed humps met all technical warrants and
presented three options for intersection improvements at Puente Street and Northwood
Avenue.  The Traffic Committee subsequently approved a motion to refine the intersection
options based on feedback from the resident group making the request, to refine the speed
hump design further, and to present these items at a future Traffic Committee
meeting.  After attaining resident input on the preferred design option and subsequent plan
revisions, the Conceptual Signing and Striping Improvement Plan was presented by the City
Traffic Engineer on November 17, 2022, to the Traffic Committee with the recommendations
to move forward with the intersection improvements as identified on the plan and to bring the
speed hump portion of the request to a future Traffic Committee meeting.  Subsequently, the
Traffic Committee approved a motion concurring with the provided recommendations.

The proposed Conceptual Signing and Striping Improvement Plan, prepared by the City
Traffic Engineer, offers both signage and striping improvements at the intersection of Puente
Street and Northwood Avenue that serve as safety enhancements.  The improvements



proposed include the installation of crosswalks at the intersection; the restriping of bike lanes
at the south leg of the intersection; the addition of lane delineation striping at the east leg of
the intersection; the installation of channelizing striping at the northeast and southeast
corners of the intersection; as well as associated signage improvements.  Please see the
Conceptual Signing and Striping Improvement Plan attached for reference.  These
improvements collectively reduce the speeds of motorists approaching the intersection by
narrowing the intersection and providing additional safety measures for pedestrians at the
intersection.               

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
Implementing the traffic improvements outlined in the Conceptual Signing and Striping
Improvement Plan are estimated to cost $4,500.  Sufficient funds are available within the
Department of Public Works operational budget for installing the traffic improvements.  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Ryan S. Chapman, P.E., Assistant City Engineer
Concurrence:  Michael Ho, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

Attachments
Conceptual Signing & Striping Improvement Plan 



P
U

E
N

TE

NORTHWOOD AVE

S
T

INSTALL NEW POST, W3-1

INSTALL CHANNELIZING STRIPING
ON NE & SE CORNERS

RELOCATE R1-1 AND
STREET NAME SIGNS TO
NEW POST ADJACENT TO
OR CLOSER TO LIMIT LINE

ALTA  MESA DR

INSTALL 4 NEW CROSSWALKS

INSTALL 4 NEW ADVANCE
LIMIT LINES INSTALL NEW POST,

W3-1

INSTALL "STOP AHEAD"
PAVEMENT MARKINGS
ADJACENT TO THE
W3-1 SIGN

INSTALL WESTBOUND RIGHT-TURN
ONLY LANE ON NORTHWOOD AVE

REMOVE EXISTING BIKE
LANE STRIPING AND INSTALL

NEW 8' PARKING LANE AND
5' BIKE LANE AS SHOWN

REMOVE EXISTING D11-1 & M14-4
AND INSTALL R81(CA) & R81A(CA)

RESTRIPE BIKE LANE AS
SHOWN AND EXTEND BIKE
LANE STRIPING TO LIMIT
LINE

INSTALL NEW POST, R7-9

INSTALL NEW POST, R7-9

 RESTRIPE DOUBLE YELLOW
TO PROVIDE CONTINUOUS

10' SOUTHBOUND LANE

SIGN INSTALLATIONS

TYPE
W3-1

R7-9

R81(CA)

R81A(CA)

SIZE
30"x30"

12"x18"

12"x8"

12"x5"

QTY
2

2

1

1

CITY OF BREALINSCOTT, LAW & GREENSPAN, engineers

N

SIGNING AND STRIPING IMPROVEMENTS
PUENTE STREET AND NORTHWOOD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AHEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
o:\job_file\4441\2022-02 n puente st & northwood ave\dwg\4441-puente & northwood (work order) v9.dwg 11/17/2022 08:50:33 gutierrez ---- 11/17/2022 08:50:33 gutierrez ----11/17/2022 08:50:33 gutierrez ---- 08:50:33 gutierrez ----08:50:33 gutierrez ---- gutierrez ----gutierrez ---- --------

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1"=60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECOMMENDED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY TRAFFIC ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
David Roseman

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7-9

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
W3-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R81(CA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIKE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R81A(CA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGIN



9.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: Purchase of New Fire Apparatus
 

RECOMMENDATION
Appropriate $219,408.15 from General Fund and authorize the purchase of one (1)
ladder/tiller truck for $1,950,408.63.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
In 2022, the City retained Citygate Associates, LLC (Citygate) to conduct a comprehensive
Standards of Response Coverage (SOC) and Community Risk Assessment (CRA) study to
review current organizational conditions, analyze future service demands and service
delivery options, and provide recommendations for the Fire Department (Department) to
guide future decision-making for the next three to five years. The scope included a command
staff assessment to model the City’s needs if it were to separate from the shared fire
command partnership with the City of Fullerton. Citygate utilized multiple sources to gather,
understand, and model information about the City and Department and requested a large
amount of relevant background data and information to understand better current costs,
service levels, history of service level decisions, and prior studies. Citygate also utilized
various National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) and Insurance Services Office (ISO)
publications as best practice guidelines, along with the self-assessment criteria of the
Commission on Fire Accreditation International (CFAI).

Following the issuance of the report, Public Works Department management staff met with
Fire Department management staff to assess the current operations of Fire Station 1 and
Fire Station 2 vehicles and discussed the recommended replacement.

To better understand the current asset, vehicle age/mileage, and deployment, a detailed
breakdown of Fire Station 1 and Fire Station 2 was created. The recommendations for new
equipment noted are from Fire management staff:

Fire Station 1:
Reserve Ladder/Tiller Truck (2007 Pierce, 105,749 miles)

Fire Station 2:
Frontline Ladder/Tiller Truck (New truck)

The current frontline truck will go on reserve status once the new frontline truck is received.



With the growing number of emergency calls due to our increasing population and risk of
wildland fires, replacing the one ladder/tiller truck (La France 1998) is recommended. This
setup will put the City in a better position for the future needs of the Fire Department.

At the October 18, 2022, City Council meeting, the City Council authorized the purchase of
three fire engines for $2,718,583.52. The cost of this new ladder truck is $1,950,408.63.
There is currently $1,731,000.48 budget remaining. An appropriation of $219,408.15 is
required to cover the shortfall to purchase the new ladder truck. By prepaying and purchasing
the ladder truck now, the City can save over $130,000. 

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
As equipment prices have risen tremendously this past year, the need to purchase now is
due to lengthier build times and annual cost increases. The cost of one ladder/tiller truck is
$1,950,408.63, with only a $1,731,000.48 budget remaining. An appropriation of $219,408.15
is required to cover the shortfall. By purchasing this apparatus now and taking advantage of a
prepayment discount, the City can save over $130,000. The fiscal impact will be to the
General Fund.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Rudy Correa, Equipment Superintendent
Concurrence: Michael Ho, Public Works Director/City Engineer

Attachments
Quote 





Pulse Published Unpublished
Number Qty Description Options Options

109 1 TAK-4 Suspension $21,492.00
112 1 Change to Air Ride Suspension, Single $9,437.00
137 1 Brake fittings compression type $1,898.00
143 1 Cummins 450 to x12 $39,119.00

1 X12 to Paccar 510 HP $0.00 $33,320.00
167 1 Mirrors - change to Bus style cab corner $4,345.00
170 1 Raised roof, custom cab $3,167.00
175 1 Electric Windows $2,795.00
176 1 Electric Door locks $1,628.00
177 1 110 Volt cab A/C $3,039.00
186 1 EMS Compartment in Cab $4,229.00
208 15 Spare 12 volt power (each) $3,600.00

1 David Clark Intercom $0.00 $11,668.00
234 6 Intercom Headset - Wired $4,494.00
252 1 430 amp Delco alternator $5,244.00
253 1 LED cab lighting $1,284.00
255 1 LED Headlights $3,248.00
266 1 Tail lighting LED Upgrade $2,212.00
254 1 LED body perimeter additional $2,877.00
259 1 12 volt LED Flood Brow light B $4,317.00
264 7 12 volt LED Flood Recessed or surface (per light) B $24,584.00
297 1 LED Compartment Lighting premium $5,353.00
310 6 Adjustable Compartment shelves $1,590.00
314 4 Slide-out floor tray $4,448.00
330 16 SCBA Storage Bins (each) $3,424.00
334 1 Increase Pump from 1250 to 1500 gpm $8,142.00
422 1 Q2B Siren $5,795.00
429 1 Traffic Directing light bar "B" $3,680.00

#N/A $0.00
#N/A $0.00
#N/A $0.00
Base Bid $1,693,508.00

Published Options $175,441.00

Total Published Options $1,868,949.00

Unpublished Options $44,988.00 2.41%

Total Options w/o HGAC Fee $1,913,937.00



10.        
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 02/28/2023

SUBJECT: Purchasing System Update – Receive Update and Consider Revisions to the
City’s Purchasing Policy Limits

RECOMMENDATION
Receive the update and recommend the City Council consider adoption of Resolution No.
2023-0XX designating Purchasing Policy Limits and the Local Vendor Preference Amount for
the City’s Purchasing System.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The City’s Purchasing Policy (Ordinance No. 1198) defines Open Market, Informal
Solicitation and Formal Solicitation purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, and services
for both non-Public Works projects and Public Works projects.  The City’s Purchasing Policy
also defines the local vendor preference amount and is only used for comparison purposes in
connection with Formal Solicitation purchases of supplies, materials, equipment and
services.
 
Periodically, the Purchasing Policy limits need to be revised by resolution to conform to new
and revised legislation and to update the purchase limits based on various economic
factors.  The last revision to the City’s Purchasing Policy limits was in 2019 with Resolution
No. 2019-008 which updated the Public Works projects limits based upon the increased
thresholds identified in the amendments of the California Uniform Public Construction Cost
Accounting Act (“CUPCCAA”) (Cal. Pub. Cont. Code § 22000 et. seq.).  Whereas, the
Purchasing Policy limits for non-Public Works projects remain unchanged. The last update to
the non-Public Works projects purchasing limit was in 2017 with Resolution No. 2017-067
which updated the Open Market limit from $3,000 to $5,000.  Purchasing limits for Informal
Solicitation and Formal Solicitation remain unchanged and have not been updated since prior
to 1987.
 
Recently, the Purchasing Division received several requests from departments to review the
Purchasing Policy limits in regards to non-Public Works projects and consider updating to
allow for greater efficiency within the purchasing procedures.  Staff researched this matter
further and evaluated purchasing policy limits of neighboring Orange County agencies
including Anaheim, Fullerton, Irvine, La Palma, Newport Beach, Placentia, Santa Ana and
Yorba Linda.  For reference please find attached the Comparison of Purchasing Policy Limits
for the Procurement of Goods and Services for the neighboring cities that were
surveyed.  For non-Public Works projects, purchasing limits vary between each agency since
they were tailored to the agency’s specific procurement procedures.  For Open Market



purchases, the purchasing limit typically ranges from $1,000 up to $10,000.  For Informal
Solicitation purchases, purchasing limits vary even more between the agencies evaluated. 
The purchasing limit for Informal Solicitation ranges between $1,001 to $75,000.
 
Staff also conducted an analysis of the City’s purchasing activity and volume for the past
fiscal year from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 and below is summary of purchase orders for
non-Public Works projects:
  
Purchase Order
Level ($)    

Number of
Purchase Orders  

Purchase Orders
as a Percent of Total  

$5,001 to $7,000 15 9%
$7,001 to $25,000 90 58%
$25,001 to $50,000  26 17%
Over $50,001 25 16%
TOTAL 156 100%

 
It is also important to consider current economic factors and their impact on an agency’s
purchasing limit so that it retains purchasing power over time consistent with the intention of
the purchasing system.  For reference, the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers
(CPI-U) for the Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim area was 5.8 percent as of January
2023 for a twelve-month period.  Based upon this research and analysis, staff is
recommending to update the Purchasing Policy limits for Open Market Solicitation, Informal
Solicitation and Formal Solicitation for non-Public Works projects.  All other limits are
recommended to remain the same.  Additionally, the local vendor preference amount will
continue to be 1% of the bid amount. 

The below chart summarizes the current and proposed Purchasing Policy Limits for
non-Public Works projects, and if approved, would shift approximately 26 purchases from a
formal bidding process to an informal bidding process.  With this recommendation, the
"Executed/Signed By" authority would also be increased as follows:
  

  Non-Public Works Projects
Purchasing Policy Limit  Current Proposed  Executed/Signed By
Open Market $5,000 $7,000 Purchasing Agent, Directors, or

Directors' designee
Informal Solicitation $25,000 $50,000 Purchasing Agent or 

Administrative Services Director
Formal Solicitation > $25,000 > $50,000 Mayor or City Manager

In addition to consistency with other cities, this change would accelerate the purchasing
process for parts and services that are needed eliminating delays in necessary repairs or
improvements due to the timeframe required under the current policy limits. 

As an example, Public Works recently purchased nine utility poles for safety netting at the
Brea Creek Golf Course as part of the Arovista Modernization Project with bids
ranging between $34,653 to $57,510.  Under the current policy, this required a formal bidding
process that took four to six weeks to solicit and prepare a recommendation to the Finance
Committee and City Council for final approval. Under the recommended policy limits, this



Committee and City Council for final approval. Under the recommended policy limits, this
purchase would require an Informal Solicitation allowing staff to obtain three written quotes
from vendors and the purchase can be made administratively in a more efficient and timely
manner while retaining the lowest responsive bid.  In this example, the delivery time to
receive these poles would be reduced and installation could take place sooner.

ALTERNATIVES 

City Council may elect to modify staff's recommended Purchasing Policy Limits for
non-Public Works projects; or
City Council may elect to maintain the current Purchasing Policy Limits.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
There is no direct fiscal impact from approving the attached resolution.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Alicia Brenner, Senior Fiscal Analyst
Concurrence: Kristin Griffith, Director of Administrative Services 

Attachments
Current Purchasing Ordinance No. 1198 
Comparison of Purchasing Policy Limits for the Procurement of Goods and Services 
Resolution 



ORDINANCE NO. 1198

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BREA UPDATING THE CITY'S PURCHASING SYSTEM AND
AMENDING THE BREA CITY CODE

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BREA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

A. RECITALS: 

i) The City's current purchasing system, codified at Chapter 3. 24 of the Brea

City Code, was established in 1961. 

ii) In the fifty-six years since the City's current purchasing system was

established, statutes and case law governing municipal purchasing have evolved. 

Additionally, there have been changes in the City's internal organization and operations. 

iii) The purpose of this Ordinance is to modernize and clarify the City's

purchasing system consistent with applicable law. 

B. ORDINANCE: 

Section 1. The facts set forth in the Recitals, Part A of this Ordinance, are true

and correct. 

Section 2. Chapter 3. 24 ( Purchasing) of Tittle 3 ( Revenue and Finance) of Part

I ( Municipal Code) of the Brea City Code is amended to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 3. 24: PURCHASING

Section

3. 24.010 Adoption of Purchasing System
3. 24.020 Definitions

3. 24.030 Centralized Purchasing Division; Purchasing Agent
3. 24.040 Exemptions from Centralized Purchasing
3. 24. 050 Requisitions

3. 24. 060 Use of Purchasing Cards, Purchase Orders, and Written
Contracts

3. 24.070 Open Market Purchases

3. 24. 080 Informal Solicitation Purchases

November 21, 2017

ORD. 1198



3. 24. 090 Formal Solicitation Purchases

3. 24. 100 Professional Service Purchases

3. 24. 110 Public Works Project Purchases

3. 24. 120 Special Circumstances

3. 24. 130 Bonds

3. 24. 140 Change Orders

3. 24. 150 Surplus Personal Property Disposal

3. 24.010 — Adoption of Purchasing System. 

In order to establish efficient procedures for the purchase of supplies, materials, 

equipment, and services at the lowest cost commensurate with quality needed and with

due consideration to disposability; to exercise positive financial control over purchases; 

to clearly define authority for the purchasing functions; and to buy without favor or

prejudice, a purchasing system is adopted and shall control the procedure for all

purchases except as otherwise provided by law. 

3. 24.020 — Definitions. 

For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the

context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 

A. " Cost -Based Services": All services other than professional services. 

B. " Department": Any of the departments, offices, or other organization units

of the city, or of any special agency whose affairs and funds are under the supervision

and control of the City Council and for which the City Council is ex -officio the governing

body. 

C. " Director": The person appointed by the City Manager to lead a department. 

D. " Emergency": A sudden, unexpected occurrence requiring immediate

action to maintain public safety, or to prevent or mitigate the loss or impairment of life, 

health, property, or essential public services. 

November 21, 2017

2 ORD. 1198



E. " Local Vendor": A vendor that satisfies all of the following criteria: ( i) 

regularly maintains a place of business and transacts business in, or regularly maintains

an inventory of merchandise for sale in, the city; ( ii) is current in the payment of business

taxes to the city; and ( iii) possesses all necessary licenses and permits from the city. 

F. " Local Vendor Preference Amount": the amount by which an offer from a

local vendor in a formal solicitation pursuant to § 3. 24. 090 shall be reduced for offer

comparison purposes. 

G. " Offer": A quote, bid, or proposal. 

H. " Offeror": The individual or entity providing a quote, bid, or proposal. 

I. " Professional Services": The services of architects, artists and designers, 

attorneys, auditors, computer programmers, economic analysts, engineers, 

environmental analysts, financial analysts, grant and specification writers, insurance

brokers, property analysts, real estate agents, specialized trainers, or other individuals

or entities possessing a high degree of specialized skill or expertise that, in the

determination of the City Manager, do not readily fall within a cost -based competitive offer

process. 

J. " Public Works Project": A public project as defined by the UPCCAA. 

K. " Purchase": Purchase of supplies, materials, equipment, and services shall

include leases or rentals of such items as well as transactions by which the city acquires

ownership or services. 

L. " Purchasing Policy": The City Council resolution designating: ( i) the limits

for open market, informal solicitation, and formal solicitation purchases of supplies, 

materials, equipment, services, and public works projects; and ( ii) the local vendor

preference amount. 

November 21, 2017

3 ORD. 1198



M. " Responsive and Responsible Offeror": An offeror that both: ( i) has

submitted an offer to furnish supplies, materials, equipment, services, or a public works

project in conformity with the solicitation; and ( ii) has demonstrated the attribute of

trustworthiness, as well as quality, fitness, capacity, and experience to satisfactorily

provide the supplies, materials, equipment, services, or public works project specified in

the solicitation ( as determined from prior experience with the city, references, and other

available information). 

N. " Services": Any and all cost -based services and professional services. 

O. " Solicitation": A request for quote, bid or proposal. 

P. " Supplies", " Materials", and " Equipment": Any and all items that shall be

furnished to or used by any department. 

Q. " Surplus Personal Property": Any item that is obsolete, worn out, or no

longer used by the acquiring department. 

R. " UPCCAA": The Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act ( Cal. 

Pub. Cont. Code § 22000 et seq.). 

S. " Vendor": A consultant, contractor, or provider of supplies, materials, 

equipment, and services. 

T. " Vendors List": A current file of vendors for supplies, materials, equipment, 

and services. 

3. 24.030 — Centralized Purchasing Division; Purchasing Agent. 

A. Centralized Purchasing Division. There is created a centralized purchasing

division within the Administrative Services Department in which is vested authority to

purchase supplies, materials, equipment, and services. The City Manager, acting for and

on behalf of the City Council, shall have the power to issue instructions as deemed

necessary for the operation of the purchasing division. 

November 21, 2017

4 ORD. 1198



B. Purchasing Agent. There is created the position of Purchasing Agent. The

Purchasing Agent shall be appointed by the City Manager to direct and manage the city's

purchasing division. The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to purchase supplies, 

materials, equipment, and services in accordance with this chapter. The Purchasing

Agent shall establish methods and procedures necessary for the efficient and economical

functioning of the purchasing division. 

3. 24.040 — Exemptions from Centralized Purchasing. 

The Purchasing Agent may, and where legally required to do so shall, authorize a

department to independently purchase particular classes of supplies, materials, 

equipment, or services in accordance with this chapter. Unless otherwise prohibited by

law, the Purchasing Agent also may rescind such authorization to purchase

independently. 

3.24.050 — Requisitions. 

All departments shall submit requests to the Purchasing Agent by standard

requisition forms for the supplies, materials, equipment, and services required for their

operations subject to available City Council -adopted budget appropriations. 

3. 24.060 — Use of Purchasing Cards, Purchase Orders, and Written Contracts. 

Purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, and services shall be made by

purchasing card transaction, or by a purchase order, or by both a written contract and a

purchase order as specified below and within the limits specified in the purchasing policy. 

3. 24.070 — Open Market Purchases. 

A. Applicability. The Purchasing Agent, Directors, and Directors' designees

may use the procedure set forth in this section for purchases of supplies, materials, 

equipment, and cost -based services of a value within the open market purchase limit

specified in the purchasing policy. 

November 21, 2017

5 ORD. 1198



B. Solicitation. The Purchasing Agent, Directors, and Directors' designees

shall make a reasonable effort to obtain the lowest cost commensurate with quality

needed by written, electronic, or other means without the necessity of publishing notice

of the solicitation or seeking competitive offers. 

C. Execution. Open market purchases may be executed by a purchasing card

transaction or by a purchase order as deemed appropriate by the Purchasing Agent. Any

such purchasing card transaction may be executed by the Purchasing Agent, Directors, 

and Directors' designees. Any such purchase order may be executed by the Purchasing

Agent. 

3. 24.080 — Informal Solicitation Purchases. 

A. Applicability. The Purchasing Agent may use the procedure set forth in this

section for purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, and cost -based services of a

value within the informal solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy. 

B. Solicitation, The Purchasing Agent shall make a reasonable effort to obtain

at least three competitive offers by written, electronic, or other means without the

necessity of publishing notice of the solicitation. In the event three competitive offers are

not obtained, the Purchasing Agent shall document the reasons therefore in the files of

the Purchasing Division. 

C. Offer Submission. Offers shall be submitted to the Purchasing Agent as

specified in the solicitation. 

D. Purchase Award; Offer Rejection. The Purchasing Agent shall award the

purchase to the lowest responsive and responsible offeror or shall reject all offers. If all

offers are rejected, then the Purchasing Agent may cancel the procurement or may

reissue the solicitation. 

November 21, 2017

g ORD. 1198



E. Tie Offers. If two or more offers received are for the same total amount or

unit price, quality and service being equal, then the Purchasing Agent may either: ( i) 

select one based on delivery date, scope of warranty, local vendor status, or other benefit

deemed to be in the city' s best interests; or ( ii) accept the offer made by negotiation with

the tie offerors. 

F. Execution. Informal solicitation purchases may be executed by a purchase

order or by both a written contract and a purchase order as deemed appropriate by the

Purchasing Agent. Any such purchase order and written contract may be executed by

the Purchasing Agent or the Administrative Services Director. 

3.24.090 — Formal Solicitation Purchases. 

A. Applicability. The Purchasing Agent shall use the procedure set forth in this

section for purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, and cost -based services of a

value within the formal solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy. 

B. Solicitation. The Purchasing Agent shall publish notice of the solicitation. 

Such notice shall include a general description of the supplies, materials, equipment, or

services to be purchased; shall state where the solicitation documents may be obtained; 

and shall state the time and place for opening of offers. The Purchasing Agent shall also

solicit offers from vendors whose names are on the vendors list for the category of

purchase being solicited. 

C. Offer Submission. At the discretion of the Purchasing Agent, sealed written

offers may be received in paper copy or by secured electronic means, as specified in the

solicitation. 

D. Offer Opening. The Purchasing Agent shall publicly open offers at the time

and place stated in the solicitation. If an offer is submitted by a local vendor, the

November 21, 2017

7
ORD. 1198



Purchasing Agent shall, for the purpose of offer comparison only, reduce the amount of

such offer by the local vendor preference amount. Offer results shall be posted publicly

or otherwise made available for public inspection. 

E. Purchase Award; Offer Rejection. The City Council shall award the

purchase to the lowest responsive and responsible offeror or shall reject all offers. If all

offers are rejected, then the City Council may cancel the procurement or may order

reissuance of the solicitation. 

F. Tie Offers. If two or more low offers received are for the same total amount

or unit price, quality and service being equal, then the City Council may either: ( i) select

one based on delivery date, scope of warranty, local vendor status, or other benefit

deemed to be in the city' s best interests; or (ii) accept the lowest offer made by negotiation

with the tie offerors. 

G. Execution. Formal solicitation purchases may be executed by a purchase

order or by both a written contract and a purchase order as deemed appropriate by the

Purchasing Agent. Any such purchase order may be executed by the Administrative

Services Director. Any such written contract may be executed by the Mayor or the City

Manager. 

3. 24.100 — Professional Service Purchases. 

A. Open Market Solicitation. The Purchasing Agent, Directors, and Directors' 

designees may use the procedure set forth in this paragraph for purchases of professional

services of a value within the open market purchase limit specified in the purchasing

policy. 

1. The Purchasing Agent, Directors, and Directors' designees shall

make a reasonable effort to obtain offers by written, electronic, or other means without

the necessity of publishing notice of the solicitation or seeking competitive offers. 

November 21, 2017

g ORD. 1198



2. Open market purchases may be executed by a purchasing card

transaction or by a purchase order as deemed appropriate by the Purchasing Agent. Any

such purchasing card transaction may be executed by the Purchasing Agent, Directors, 

and Directors' designees. Any such purchase order may be executed by the Purchasing

Agent. 

B. Informal Solicitation. The Purchasing Agent may use the procedure set

forth in this paragraph for purchases of professional services of a value within the informal

solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy. 

1. The Purchasing Agent shall make a reasonable effort to obtain at

least three competitive offers by written, electronic, or other means without the necessity

of publishing notice of the solicitation. In the event three competitive offers are not

obtained, the Purchasing Agent shall document the reasons therefore in the files of the

Purchasing Division. 

2. The Purchasing Agent shall either: ( i) award the purchase to a

responsive and responsible offeror on the basis of demonstrated competence, 

professional qualifications, and a fair and reasonable price for the city; or ( ii) reject all

offers. If all offers are rejected, then the Purchasing Agent may cancel the procurement

or may reissue the solicitation. 

3. Informal solicitation purchases may be executed by a purchase order

or by both a written contract and a purchase order as deemed appropriate by the

Purchasing Agent. Any such purchase order and written contract may be executed by

the Purchasing Agent or the Administrative Services Director. 

C. Formal Solicitation. The Purchasing Agent shall use the procedure set forth

in this paragraph for purchases of professional services of a value within the formal

solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy. 

November 21, 2017

9
ORD. 1198



1. The Purchasing Agent shall publish a notice of the solicitation. 

2. The City Council shall either: ( i) award the purchase to a responsive

and responsible offeror on the basis of demonstrated competence, professional

qualifications, and a fair and reasonable price for the city; or ( ii) reject all offers. If all

offers are rejected, then the City Council may cancel the procurement or may order

reissuance of the solicitation. 

3. Formal solicitation purchases may be executed by a purchase order

or by both a written contract and a purchase order as deemed appropriate by the

Purchasing Agent. Any such purchase order may be executed by the Administrative

Services Director. Any such written contract may be executed by the Mayor or the City

Manager. 

3. 24.110 — Public Works Project Purchases. 

A. Open Market Purchases. The Public Works Director may execute written

contracts for public works projects of a value within the open market purchase limit

specified in the purchasing policy. Such purchases may be made without competitive

bidding. 

B. Informal Solicitation Purchases. The Public Works Director may use the

procedure set forth in this paragraph for public works project contract awards within the

informal solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy. 

1. The city shall maintain a list of all qualified contractors, identified

according to categories of work. The criteria for development and maintenance of the

contractors list shall be as determined by the California Uniform Construction Cost

Accounting Commission. 

2. Not less than ten ( 10) calendar days before offers will be due, the

Public Works Director shall issue an offer invitation notice to all qualified contractors on

November 21, 2017

10 ORD. 1198



the list for the category of work being solicited or to all trade journals specified pursuant

to Cal. Pub. Cont. Code § 22036, or both, unless the product or service is proprietary. 

The notice shall describe the project in general terms and how to obtain more detailed

information about the project, and shall state the time and place for submission of offers. 

3. All received offers that are timely shall be evaluated by the Public

Works Department. 

4. The Public Works Director shall award the contract to the lowest

responsive and responsible offeror or shall reject all offers. If all offers are rejected, then

the Public Works Director may cancel the procurement or may reissue the solicitation. 

5. If all offers received are in excess of the public works project informal

solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy, then, by adoption of a resolution by

four-fifths vote, and upon determining that the city's cost estimate was reasonable, the

City Council may award the contract to the lowest responsive and responsible offeror in

an amount up to the limit specified in the purchasing policy for such circumstances. 

C. Formal Purchases. The Public Works Director shall use the formal

solicitation procedure set forth in the UPCCAA for public works project contract awards

within the formal solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy. 

D. Execution. Public works project purchases shall be executed by both a

written contract and a purchase order. Any such purchase order may be executed by the

Purchasing Agent or the Administrative Services Director as applicable. Written contracts

for an open market purchase, and for an informal solicitation purchase within the informal

solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy, may be executed by the Public Works

Director. All other written contracts may be executed by the Mayor or City Manager. 

E. Administration. Public works project contract administration will be the

responsibility of the Public Works Department. 
November 21, 2017

11
ORD. 1198



3. 24. 120 — Special Circumstances. 

A. Special Government Payments. This chapter does not apply to payments

made for Department of Justice background checks, U. S. Postal Service postage, or

permit fees imposed by other government agencies. 

B. Legal Notices. This chapter does not apply to contracts for printing of legal

notices in a newspaper of general circulation. The City Council shall annually award such

contracts in accordance with Cal. Pub. Cont. Code § 20169 based on price, circulation, 

and any other matters deemed to affect the value to the public. 

C. Emergency Procurements. 

1. Public Works Projects. When repairs or replacements are necessary

in an emergency, the City Council, by a four-fifths vote, may proceed at once to repair or

replace any public facility without adopting plans, specifications, or working details, or

publishing a notice of the solicitation, and without otherwise complying with the

requirements of this chapter. Prior to taking such action, the City Council shall make a

finding, based on substantial evidence set forth in the minutes of its meeting, that the

emergency will not permit a delay resulting from a solicitation for competitive offers, and

that the action is necessary to respond to the emergency. The work may be done by day

labor, by contract, or by a combination of the two. If a notice of the solicitation is not

published, the city shall comply with Cal. Pub. Cont. Code § 22050. The City Manager is

delegated the authority to declare the emergency in such circumstances when it is not

feasible for the City Council to meet to do so, and to take such actions as the City Manager

deems necessary, consistent with the provisions of this paragraph. The City Manager's

actions shall be subject to prompt review by the City Council as to the need to continue

the emergency action, in accordance with the provisions of § 22050. 

November 21, 2017

12 ORD. 1198



2. Supplies, Materials, Equipment and Services. In the event of an

emergency giving rise to the need to procure supplies, materials, equipment or services

without complying with this chapter, the City Council may dispense with bidding or other

requirements of this chapter, and may expend any sura to make the procurement required

due to the emergency. The City Manager is delegated the authority to declare the

emergency in such circumstances when it is not feasible for the City Council to meet to

do so, and to take such actions as the City Manager deems necessary, consistent with

the provisions of this paragraph. The City Manager's actions shall be subject to prompt

review by the City Council as to the need to continue the emergency action. 

D. Developer -Funded Professional Services. This chapter does not apply to

purchases of professional services that both: ( i) relate to a private development project

under review by the city; and ( ii) are solely funded by the project applicant or an affiliate

of the project applicant. Such purchases may be executed by a purchasing card

transaction, or by a purchase order, or by both a written contract and a purchase order

as deemed appropriate by the Purchasing Agent. Any such purchasing card transaction, 

purchase order, or written contract may be executed by the Purchasing Agent or the

Administrative Services Director. 

E. Public Interest Exemption. The competitive offer requirements of this

chapter shall not apply to purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, or services when

the Purchasing Agent, with the approval of the City Manager, determines that the best

interests of the city would be served thereby and the amount of the contract does not

exceed twice the formal solicitation limit specified in the purchasing policy. This exemption

may not be used for public works projects. Whenever the City Manager approves the use

of this exemption, the City Manager may require that the Purchasing Agent solicit informal

offers under such conditions and limitations as the City Manager may impose. If the value

November 21, 2017

13
ORD. 1198



of a procurement made using this exemption is within the open market limit specified by

the purchasing policy, then the purchase may be executed by purchasing card or

purchase order as deemed appropriate by the Purchasing Agent. If the value of a

procurement made using this exemption is within the informal solicitation limit specified

by the purchasing policy, then a purchase order and written contract shall be executed

by the Purchasing Agent. For all other procurements made using this exemption, a written

contract shall be executed by the City Manager and a purchase order shall be executed

by the Purchasing Agent or Administrative Services Director. 

F. Sole Source Procurements. The competitive offer requirements of this

chapter shall not apply to purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, or services that

are available from only one ( 1) source. The Purchasing Agent may negotiate with such

source to the end that the city receives the desired supplies, materials, equipment, or

service on fair terms. Such procurements shall be executed in accordance with

paragraph J below. 

G. Piggyback or Cooperative Purchase Procurements. The competitive offer

requirements of this chapter shall not apply to purchases of supplies, materials, 

equipment, or services available through: ( i) a valid contract executed by another public

agency, or ( ii) a cooperative purchasing program in which the city's participation is

authorized by law and is deemed to be in the city's best interests in the determination of

the Purchasing Agent. Such procurements shall be executed in accordance with

paragraph J below. 

H. Uniformity Exemption. The competitive offer requirements of this chapter

shall not apply to purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, or services that are

required to maintain compatibility, functionality, or conformity with existing designs, 

products, equipment, facilities, systems, software, technologies, standardizations, and

November 21, 2017

14 ORD. 1198



the like or to maintain current warranties or contractual obligations deemed to be in the

city's best interests in the determination of the Purchasing Agent. Such procurements

shall be executed in accordance with paragraph J below. 

I. Best Value Purchases. If the Purchasing Agent determines that it is not in

the city's best interests to obtain a particular cost -based service using the competitive

offer process of §§ 3. 24. 080 and 3. 24. 090, then the Purchasing Agent may procure such

service on a best value basis. For such procurements, the Purchasing Agent shall

determine the vendor that offers the best overall value to the city based on qualifications, 

experience, past performance, and price. Such procurements shall be executed in

accordance with paragraph J below. 

J. Execution. If the value of a procurement made under paragraphs F through

above is within the open market limit specified by the purchasing policy, then the

purchase may be executed by purchasing card or purchase order as deemed appropriate

by the Purchasing Agent. If the value of a procurement made under paragraphs F through

I above is within the informal solicitation limit specified by the purchasing policy, then a

purchase order or both a purchase order and written contract shall be executed by the

Purchasing Agent. If the value of a procurement made under paragraphs F through I

above is within the formal solicitation limit specified by the purchasing policy, then the

purchase shall be subject to City Council approval, a written contract shall be executed

by the Mayor or the City Manager, and a purchase order shall be executed by

Administrative Services Director. 

3. 24. 130 — Bonds. 

A. Authority. The Public Works Director or the Purchasing Agent shall have

authority to require a bid, performance, payment, or other bond as deemed necessary to

November 21, 2017

15
ORD. 1198



protect the best interest of the city. The form and the amount of any required bond shall

be described in the solicitation. 

B. Return or Forfeiture of Bid Bond. Offerors shall be entitled to return of bid _ 

security; provided that a successful offeror shall forfeit its bid bond upon refusal or failure

to execute the contract within ten ( 10) days after the notice of award has been issued. If

the purchase is awarded to another offeror, then the amount of the lowest offeror's bid

bond shall be applied by the city to the contract price differential between the lowest offer

and the awarded offer, and any surplus shall be returned to the lowest offeror. If all offers

are rejected and the solicitation is reissued, then the amount of the lowest offeror's bid

bond may be used to offset the cost of receiving new offers, and any surplus shall be

returned to the lowest offeror. 

3. 24.140 — Change Orders. 

For any City Council -approved purchase, the Administrative Services Director may

execute change orders that cumulatively do not exceed the contingency limit specified by

the City Council. If no contingency limit has been specified, then the Purchasing Agent

and the Administrative Services Director may execute change orders that cumulatively

do not exceed five percent (5%) of the original purchase amount or five thousand dollars

5, 000), whichever is less. 

3. 24. 150 — Surplus Personal Property Disposal. 

A. Reports. All departments shall submit to the Purchasing Agent, at such

times and in such form as the Purchasing Agent shall prescribe, reports showing stocks

of surplus personal property. 

B. Interdepartmental Transfers. The Purchasing Agent may transfer any

usable surplus personal property to another department in lieu of filling requisitions for

the purchase of new and additional stocks of the same or similar articles. 

November 21, 2017

16 ORD. 1198



C. Estimate of Value. The Purchasing Agent shall make an estimate of the

value of all surplus personal property that is not usable by any department. 

D. Exchange, Trade- in, or Sale. The Purchasing Agent may exchange, trade- 

in, or sell any surplus personal property that is not usable by any department. 

1. For items with an estimated value within the open market limit

specified in the purchasing policy, the Purchasing Agent shall make a reasonable effort

to obtain a fair price by written, electronic, or other means without the necessity of

publishing notice of the sale or seeking competitive offers. 

2. For items with an estimated value within the informal solicitation limit

specified in the purchasing policy, the Purchasing Agent shall make a reasonable effort

to obtain at least three (3) competitive offers by written, electronic, or other means without

the necessity of publishing notice of the sale. 

3. For items with an estimated value within the formal limit specified in

the purchasing policy, the Purchasing Agent shall publish notice of the sale. Such notice

shall include a general description of the supplies, materials, or equipment to be sold; 

shall state where the solicitation documents may be secured; and shall state the time and

place for opening of offers. 

4. The Purchasing Agent shall also solicit offers from responsible

vendors whose names are on the vendor list or by means of a contracted professional

auction services. 

E. Employee Offers. Employee offers will be considered on all publicly

advertised sales; however, no employee whose job responsibility includes the

administration of such surplus personal property sales shall be permitted to bid on or

purchase such items. 

November 21, 2017

17
ORD. 1198



F. Scrapping, Donation, and Destruction. If the Purchasing Agent is unable to

exchange, trade- in, or sell surplus personal property, then the Purchasing Agent shall

document the reasons therefore in the files of the Purchasing Division and may dispose

of such articles through scrap sale, donation to another public agency, destruction, or any

other disposition thereof. 

G. Retired Police Dogs. The Purchasing Agent, upon approval of the City

Manager and Police Chief, may sell a retired police dog to its handler or another member

of the police department without need for competitive bidding

H. Payments. Payments shall be made in full prior to transfer of the property

to the winning bidder. Deposits shall be made into the general fund unless otherwise

restricted by law." 

SECTION 1. The City Council declares that, should any provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence, or word of this Ordinance be rendered or declared invalid by any

final court action in a court of competent jurisdiction, or by reason of any preemptive

legislation, the remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences, and words of this

Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 2. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Ordinance. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 21st day of November, 2017. 

ATTEST: 

Ilian Harris -City Clerk

Cecilia Hupp, Mayor
oRANGE C0 

U t 7  1

9
S T

O

aA
n

November 21, 2017

18 ORD. 1198



I, Lillian Harris -Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the

foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City

of Brea held on the 7th day of November, 2017, and was finally passed at a regular

meeting of the City Council of the City of Brea held on the 21 st day of November, 2017, 

by the following vote: 

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: Hupp, Parker, Simonoff, Vargas

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: None

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS: Marick

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS: None

OPPµ GE CO t/ 

6-

4

p

Qogq
TEo ro , J AaV 1? 

q, 

DATED: November 21, 2017

41 Q427

L' I ' n Harris -Neal, City Clerk

November 21, 2017

19
ORD. 1198



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ) 

ss. 

County of Orange ) 

I am a citizen of the United States and a resident

of the County aforesaid; I am over the age of

eighteen years, and not a party to or interested in

the above entitled matter. I am the principal clerk

of the Star- Progress, a newspaper that has been

adjudged to be a newspaper of general

circulation by the Superior Court of the County

of Orange, State of California, on June 15, 2001, 

Case No. A-55572 in and for the County of

Orange, State of California; that the notice, of

which the annexed is a true printed copy, has

been published in each regular and entire issue of

said newspaper and not in any supplement

thereof on the following dates, to wit: 

December 1, 2017

I certify ( or declare) under the penalty of

perjury under the laws of the State of California

that the foregoing is true and correct": 

Executed at Santa Ana, Orange County, 
California, on

c ber 1, 2017

Signature

Star- Progress

2190 Towne Centre Place

Anaheim, Ca 92806

714) 796- 2209

1 

OFFIO1a OFTHE
lTy OL - FT

PROOF OF PUBLICATION

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 1198 OF THE
CITY COUNCIL. OF THE CITY OF BREA UPDATING THE
CITY' S PURCHASING SYSTEM AND AMENDING THE

BREACITYCODE

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on November 21, 2017, at 7: 00 p. m., in
the Council Chambers, Level 1, Brea Civic Cultural Center, 1 Civic
Center Circle, Brea, California, the City Council of the City of Brea
adopted its Ordinance No. 1198 entitled " An Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Brea Updating the City' s Purchasing System
and Amending the Brea City Code. 

A summary Of this Ordihance-foilaws: 

The City' s current purchasing system, codified at Chapter 3. 24 of the
Brea City Code, was established in 1961. 

In the fifty-six years since the City' s current purchasing system was
established, statutes and case law governing municipal purchasing
have evolved. Additionally, there have been changes in the City' s in- 
ternal organization and operations. 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to modernize and clarify the City' s
purchasing system consistent with applicable low. 

Chapter 3. 24 ( Purchasing) of Title 3 ( Revenue and Finance) of Part I
Municipal Code) of the Brea City Code will include amendments to

the following sections: 

CHAPTER3.24: PURCHASING

Section

3. 24.010 Adoption of Purchasing System
3. 24. 020 Definitions

3. 24. 030 Centralized Purchasing Division, Purchasing Agent
3. 24. 040 Exemptions from Centralized Purchasing
3. 24. 050 Requisitions
3. 24. 060 Use of Purchasing Cards, Purchase Orders, and Written', 

Contracts

3. 24. 070 Open Market Purchases
3. 24. 080 Informal Solicitation Purchases
3. 24. 090 Formal Solicitation Purchases
3. 24. 100 Professional Service Purchases
3. 24. 110 Public Works Proiect Purchases
3. 24. 120 Special Circumstances
3. 24. 130 Bonds

3. 24. 140 Change Orders
3. 24. 150 Surplus Personal Property Disposal

Those voting for or against the Ordinance are as follows: 

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS: HUPP, PARKER, 
SIMONOFF, VARGAS

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: MARICK

ABSTAINED: COUNCILMEMBERS: NONE

A certified copy of the entirety of the text of Ordinance No. 1198 is
available in the office of the City Clerk, Brea Civic and Cultural Cen- 
ter, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California and is available for public
inspection at that location. 

Dated: November 22, 2017 Lillian Harris -Neal, City Clerk

Published in : Brea Star Progress December 1, 201711044400 . f



Comparison of Purchasing Policy Limits for the Procurement of Goods and Services
Excludes Non-Public Work Projects Limits

City Tier I Tier II Tier III Tier IV

Brea, City of
Updated 2019

 up to $5,000
 Open Market

Purchasing Agent, Director or 
designee Award

 over $25,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award
City Manager or Mayor Execute

Anaheim, City of
Updated 2021

 up to $10,000
Open Market

Award per Purchasing Procedure

$10,001 to $50,000
Informal bidding

competitive bid (if possible)
Purchasing Agent Award

$50,001 to $100,000
Formal bidding

Purchasing Agent Award

over $100,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award

Fullerton, City of
Updated 2019

 up to $5,000
Open Market

Director or designee Award

$5,001 to $50,000
Informal bidding

Director or designee Award

$50,001 to $100,000
Formal bidding

City Manager Award

over $100,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award

Irvine, City of
Updated 2019

 up to $10,000
Open Market

Director Award

$10,001 to $45,000
Informal bidding

Director Award up to $30,000
City Manager Award up to $100,000

$45,001 to $100,000
Formal bidding

City Manager Award

over $100,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award

La Palma, City of
Updated 2019

 up to $1,000
Open Market

Director Award

over $25,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award

Newport Beach, City of
Updated 2017

 up to $3,000
 Open Market

Mid-Manager Award

$3,001 to $75,000
Below $25,000 informal bidding

$25,000 to $75,000 formal bidding
Director Award

$75,001 to $120,000
Formal bidding

City Manager Award

over $120,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award

Placentia, City of
Updated 2021

 up to $2,500
 Over the Counter

Purchasing Agent or Department 
designee Award

 $2,501 to $5,000
Informal bidding

Purchasing Agent Award

 $5,001 to $40,000
Below $25,000 Informal bidding

$25,000 to $40,000 formal bidding
City Administrator Award

over $40,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award

Santa Ana, City of
Updated 2018

 up to $5,000
Open Market

$2,500 PO required
Director Award

over $25,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award

Yorba Linda, City of
Updated 2021

 up to $2,500
 Open Market

Mid-Manager Award

$2,501 to $25,000
Informal bidding

competitive bid (if possible)
Director Award

$25,001 to $75,000
Informal bidding

City Manager Award

over $75,000
Formal bidding

City Council Award

Average Policy Limit
 up to $4,900
Open Market

Manager or Department Award

$4901 to $32,800
Informal bidding

Award varies

$32,801 to $89,200
Informal/formal bidding

City Manager or 
Purchasing Agent Award

over $67,800
Formal bidding

City Council Award

$1,001 to $25,000
Informal bidding

$1,001 to $5,000 Director Award
$5,001 to 25,000 City Manager Approval

 $5,001 to $25,000
 Informal bidding

Purchasing Agent or AS Director Award

$5,001 to $25,000
Informal bidding

Purchasing Manager Award

S:\Finance\Purchasing\Policies and Procedures\Samples from Other Cities\Summary of Non-Public Work Award Authority Limits.xlsx Prepared:  8/25/2022  



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE BREA CITY COUNCIL DESIGNATING 
PURCHASING POLICY LIMITS AND THE LOCAL VENDOR 
PREFERENCE AMOUNT FOR THE CIY’S PURCHASING SYSTEM

A. RECITALS:

(i) Chapter 3.24 (Purchasing) of Title 3 (Revenue and Finance) of Part I 

(Municipal Code) of the Brea City Code sets forth the City's purchasing system. Section

3.24.020 of Chapter 3.24 defines "Purchasing Policy" as the City Council resolution 

designating: (a) the limits for open market, informal solicitation, and formal solicitation 

purchases of supplies, materials, equipment, services, and public works projects; and (b) 

the local vendor preference amount.

(ii) This Resolution constitute the Purchasing Policy described in Section 

3.24.020.

(iii) It is the intent of the City Council in adopting this Resolution to update 

existing purchasing limits to improve the efficiency of the City’s purchasing system and, 

with respect to public works projects, to keep such system consistent with amendments to 

the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (“UPCCAA”) (Cal. Pub. Cont. Code §

22000 et. seq.).

(iv) all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

B. RESOLUTION:

NOW, THEREFORE, it is found, determined and resolved by the Brea City 

Council as follows:

1. The facts as set forth in the Recitals are true and correct.



2. City Council Resolution No. 2019-008 is hereby repealed.

3. The following purchasing policy limits are established for the City’s 

purchasing system:

a. Supplies, Equipment, Materials and Services:

i. Open Market Purchases:  purchases up to $7,000 or, if 

applicable, up to the micro-purchase threshold set by federal 

regulation

ii. Informal Solicitation Purchases:  purchases over $7,000 (or, if 

applicable, the micro-purchase threshold set by federal 

regulation) and up to $50,000

iii. Formal Solicitation Purchases:  purchases over $50,000

b. Public Work Projects (governed by UPCCAA):

i. Open Market Purchases:  purchases up to $60,000

ii. Informal Solicitation Purchases:  purchases over $60,000 and 

up to $200,000

iii. Formal Solicitation Purchases:  purchases over $200,000

iv. If all offers received for an informal solicitation public works 

project purchase are in excess of $200,000, then, by adoption of 

a resolution by four-fifths vote, and upon determining that the 

City’s cost estimate was reasonable, the City Council may 

award the contract to the lowest responsive and responsible 

offeror at $212,500 or less.



4. If an offer for a purchase made pursuant to Brea City Code Section 3.24.090 

is submitted by a local vendor, then the Purchasing Agent shall, for the purpose of offer 

comparison only, reduce the amount of such offer by 1%.

5. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of March, 2023.

Marty Simonoff, Mayor

ATTEST: 
Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk



I, Lillian Harris-Neal, City Clerk of the City of Brea, do hereby certify that the 

foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Brea, held on the 7th day of February, 2023, by the following vote:

AYES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

NOES: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSENT: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

ABSTAIN: COUNCIL MEMBERS:

DATED: 

City Clerk


	Agenda
	AI_4084_February 14, 2023 Finance Committee Regular Meeting Minutes 
	       ATT_Minutes 02-14-2023
	AI_4085_Approval of the Part-Time Employment and Benefits Policy 
	AI_4068_Acceptance of the Brea Water Main Replacement Steele Drive Tract and Pleasant Hills Tract, Project Nos. 7453 and 7457 
	       ATT_Attachment A - Location Map
	FY 20-21 CIP BUDGET MASTER V2.pdf
	7942
	7430
	7431
	7442
	7453
	7454
	7457
	7458
	7459
	7460
	7461
	7462
	7464
	7465
	7466
	7467
	7468
	7469
	7470
	7471
	7472
	7473
	7474
	7475


	       ATT_Attachment B - Warranty Bond
	       ATT_Attachment C - Notice of Completion
	AI_4062_Authorize the Purchase of Playground Equipment for Arovista Park Modernization Project, CIP 7978
	AI_4087_Extension of Professional Services Agreement with Interwest Consulting Group, Inc.
	       ATT_Amendment No. 3
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_4088_Professional Services Agreement with Westberg White Architecture for Brea Senior Center Feasibility Study
	       ATT_Professional Services Agreement
	       ATT_Westberg White Architecture Fee Proposal
	AI_4086_Traffic Improvements at the Intersection of Puente Street and Northwood Avenue
	       ATT_Conceptual Signing and Striping Improvement Plan
	Sheets and Views
	11X17 (Hor)


	AI_4089_Purchase of New Fire Apparatus
	       ATT_Quote
	ADP574A.tmp
	Sheet2

	ADPA2C7.tmp
	Sheet2


	AI_3873_Purchasing System Update – Receive Update and Consider Revisions to the City’s Purchasing Policy Limits
	       ATT_Current Purchasing Ordinance No. 1198
	       ATT_Comparison of Purchasing Policy Limits for the Procurement of Goods and Services
	       ATT_Resolution

